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December 22, 2020 

 
 
 

ADDENDUM 1 
 

To: All Prospective Offerors 

From: Scott Bachtell, Supervisor of Purchasing 

Reference: Bid 2021-19 Basic Life and AD&D, Long Term Disability, Supplemental Life and Supplemental  
 AD&D Program Administration 

 

Proposal Due Date & Time:  January 6, 2021 by 1:00 PM EST 

 
This addendum is being issued to provide additions, corrections, clarifications and answers to certain questions raised 

referencing the original RFP packages and any resultant contracts for the above bid. 

 

Questions: 
 

1. Question: What is the expected upcoming renewal action? Rate increase? 

 

Answer:  This is a public bid and the incumbent (if interested) is required to bid as well.  There is no 

indication of renewal actions or rates. 

 

2. Question: When was the last true open enrollment? 

  

Answer:  Each year, employees are allowed to enroll in benefits. 

 

3. Question: How are open enrollments conducted in a normal environment (pre-Covid)? Face-to-face, group 

meetings, negative enrollment, passive enrollment, mandatory participation? 

  

Answer:  Open enrollment has been done in person where employees come into a benefit fair to have an 

opportunity to ask questions.  All enrollment is done via administration system. 

 

4. Question: Why are they out to bid? 

  

Answer:  Required by contract and WCPS purchasing guidelines. 

 

5. Question: Are there any service issues with the current carriers? How long have they been with Securian for 

Life and Cigna for LTD? 

  

Answer:  None.  B. CIGNA LTD- 7 years and Securian Life- since 2012. 

 

6. Question: Have there been any rate or plan changes over the experience period? 

  

Answer:  This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

 

 

 



 

7. Question: Current coverages are split, is it desired to have all coverages under one carrier or is it possible they 

will be split again? 

  

Answer:  WCPS does not have an opinion and will decide what is in best interest of WCPS and their 

employees.  Please feel free to quote combined and separate. 

 

8. Question: Is billing centralized or multiple locations? 

  

Answer:  Centralized. 

 

9. Question: Do the teachers participate in the Maryland State Teacher Retirement System in lieu of the Social 

Security system or in addition to the Social Security System? 

  

Answer:  Teachers participate in the Maryland State Teacher Retirement System in addition to the 

Social Security System. 

 

10. Question: Have there been any LTD plan changes in the most recent years? 

  

Answer:  No, there have not been any LTD plan changes in the past 3 years. 

 

11. Question: How long has the LTD been inforce with CIGNA? 

  

Answer: 7 years. 

 

12. Question: Will you confirm that the LTD rate changed effective 7/1/2019? 

  

Answer: 0.33 per $100. 

 

13. Question: Have there been any LTD plan changes in the most recent years? 

  

Answer: See question 10 

 

14. Question: A few times throughout the RFP document, there is direction “to note the tracking and mailing proof 

of the hard copy, in our email submission due to possible postal delays”. At the bottom of page 3, paragraph 5a, 

it states that no bid received after the due date and time listed will be considered. If we note the tracking and 

mailing proof, please confirm the bid will be accepted even if there are postal delays? 

  

Answer: Page 3, paragraph 5a, it states that no emailed bid received after the due date and time listed 

will be considered. As long as WCPS purchasing received the email bid by 1:00 PM EST on January 6, 

2021 that includes the tracking of the package, we will accept delayed hard copies of the bid.  The 

tracking may be dated no later than January 6, 2021. 

 

15. Question: Given the current national health and safety concerns around the COVID 19 virus, our workforce 

transitioned working from home. Are you willing to accept electronic signatures? 

  

Answer: Yes, but WCPS Purchasing reserves the right to ask for paperwork to be signed with wet 

signature at later date. 

 

16. Question: On the census submitted with the RFP, there are a number of employees with gender, birthdate, and 

other fields marked “N/A”.  Why are the fields labeled N/A?  If it is an error, please re-submit the census with 

those fields filled in for those employees. 

  

Answer: This has been updated and updated census will be emailed to those companies that have 

identified with an intent to bid.  If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these 

(and other) documents.  If you do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, 

please contact us to request the information again 

 



17. Question: Our organization takes COVID-19 seriously and our associates are working remotely and following 

social distancing guidelines as directed by the CDC. We will submit the proposal via email, but is it still 

mandatory to submit hard copies of the RFP submission? 

  

Answer: See question 14 

 

18. Question: There are certain employees on the census who have basic life amounts listed in both the “Employee 

ins amt” and “Employer ins amt” columns.  (columns L and M)  Do these employees pay for a portion of their 

basic life coverage?  Or is the employee ins amt (column L) their supplemental life coverage?  These 

employees all have $10,000 of coverage in the Employer ins amt column.  Please explain the status of these 

employees’ coverages. 

  

Answer: Based on the contract, if the employee pays a portion of the benefit it is listed in Employee 

section while remainder is Employer section.  Please note that some benefits are reimbursed by the 

county.  Please refer to the contract for these specifications. 

 

19. Question: With regards to the hardcopy it is our understanding that we can send the hardcopy on the due date 

(1/6/2021) as long as we include the tracking information with our electronic submission, please confirm that 

our understanding is correct. 

  

Answer: See question 14. 

 

20. Question: Is the retiree class open or closed? 

  

Answer: Open. 

 

21. Question: Is the retiree coverage ER paid or Retiree paid? If Retiree paid, does the ER collect and remit 

premium or are retirees individually billed? 

  

Answer: Retiree paid and the premium is collected by WCPS 

 

22. Question: The census indicates retiree amounts of $1,000; $5,000 or $10,000. Is this a selectable amount by the 

retiree at time of retirement? If so, are they able to elect to change it? Does it include AD&D? 

  

Answer: Yes and no AD&D 

 

23. Question: Are members of the Administrator and Supervisor class with a 25% EE paid benefit able to opt of 

coverage or is it a term of employment? 

  

Answer: LTD is an optional benefit for Administration &Supervisor employees. 

 

24. Question: The LTD billing statement provided has Class 4 listed as Long-Term Disability and Class 1, 2, 3 as 

Voluntary Long-Term disability with no insureds listed under class 1. Please confirm class structure as it 

pertains to LTD and Employer contributions for the classes. 

  

Answer: The RFP indicated that ESP and Teachers had a gross-up LTD plan while Administrators and 

Supervisors had a 75% ER paid plan. 

 

25. Question: The Census has 4 life categories: Basic Life – 26 Ded/Basic Life – 20 Ded/Basic Life Emp Paid 26 

Ded/Basic Life Emp Paid 20 Ded. The Basic Life -26 Ded and Basic Life – 20 Ded appear to be for the FT 

employees and reflect the 1x earnings Basic Life benefit in the Employer Ins Amount column. However, Basic 

Life Emp Paid 26 Ded and Basic Life Emp Paid 20 Ded show a $10,000 benefit in the Employer Ins Amount 

column and a separate number in the Employee Ins Amount column. Please define what these Deduction 

Description represent and what how the separate Employee/Employer Ins amount columns represent. Are Part-

time employees provided ER paid Life/AD&D insurance or is it all voluntary coverage? 

  

Answer: The Census has some under the Basic Life Emp Paid Ded listed without a matching AD&D 

benefit and some have a Supplemental Life benefit with their Basic Life Benefit. 



 

26. Question: Confirmation of participation in the following: 

  

Answer: PERS/STRS - Yes 

  Social Security - Yes 

  Workers Comp - Yes 

 

27. Question: Confirmation of retiree life rate; RFP indicates $0.116 per $1,000 of coverage; group website 

indicates $0.20 per month for retiree life coverage. 

  

Answer: Confirmed. Please note there may be different contributions based on 10 or 12 month pays. 

 

28. Question: Please confirm electronic receipt is acceptable for this RFP. 

  

Answer: See question 15 

 

29. Question: In the salary column on the census, certain employees have different salary amounts listed for their 

different coverages.  For example, employee 500009 has a salary of $80,491 listed for long term disability and 

accidental death, but a salary of $71,142 listed for basic life coverage.  Which is the correct salary amount?  

Please re-submit the census with corrected salary amounts 

  

Answer: See question 18 

 

30. Question: Inforce policies required for Life insurance 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

31. Question: Please send inforce rates for the Active Basic Life, Retiree Basic Life, and Supplemental Life 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

32. Question: It looks like Securian/MN Life has been inforce over 5 years but only past 2 years’ experience was 

provided. Are you able to send detailed experience data for the most recent 5 years? 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

33. Question: Can we get a recent invoice that shows lives, premium, and volumes? 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

34. Question: Will you request the current LTD booklet? I did not see a copy in the information 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 



 

35. Question: The LTD claim listing provided gross benefit for each open claim. Is the net monthly benefit amount 

for each open claim available? 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

36. Question: Please provide life plan designs for Actives and Retirees 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

37. Question: Rate change history 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

38. Question: Plan change history 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

39. Question: Please provide most recent billing statement 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

40. Question: Please provide current certificates for Life and LTD coverages. 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 

41. Question: Please provide past 5 years of Life Experience, data to include the following: 

• (Data provided was for 2017-2018 and 2019-2020 plan years) 

• Paid Premium by year 

• Paid Claims by year 

• Open Waiver of Premium Reserves by year, face amount preferred (if applicable) 

• Total Claim Count by year 

• Breakout of Basic, Additional and Dependent Life experience by individual coverage 

• Lives history 

  

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 



42. Question: LTD - Please provide past 5 years of LTD Experience, data to include the following: 

• Paid premium 

• Paid Claims by year of incurral 

• Open Reserves 

• Total Claim Count by year of incurral, open and closed claims broken out 

• Lives history 

• Individual Open/Closed Claim listing to include: 

- Demographic info; DOB, Gender, Salary 

- Date of Disability 

- Diagnosis, if available 

- Gross and Net Benefit 

- Social Security Approval Status 

- Other offsets 

- Total claim payments to date 

- Open Reserves 

 

Answer: This information will be emailed to those companies that have identified with an intent to bid.  

If your company has not done that, please do so in order to receive these (and other) documents.  If you 

do not receive the email within a day after the date on this addendum, please contact us to request the 

information again 

 
Thank you for your interest in bidding with Washington County Public Schools and we apologize for any 

inconvenience this may have caused. 
 

Sincerely, 

Scott Bachtell 
Scott Bachtell 

Supervisor of Purchasing 

 
cc: Tricia S Riley, Supervisor of Employee Benefits 

 Cheri J. Herschman, Area Senior Vice President - Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc 
 
 

This Addendum is six (6) pages 


